
1 
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING  

 

DATE:  May 14, 2024 

TIME:  10 am 

LOCATION: CWSD Conference Room /Zoom Meeting 

777 E. William Street, Suite 209, Carson City, 89701 

Committee Members are encouraged to attend via Zoom.  To phone in call 
(669)900-9128 and use Meeting ID: 881 5403 0091  and Passcode:  479327 

AGENDA 

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order;  
2) combine two or more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion 
related to an item at any time.  All votes will be conducted by CWSD Board of Directors.  Reasonable efforts will 
be made to assist and accommodate individuals with limited ability to speak, write, or understand English or to 
those with disabilities who wish to join the meeting.  Please contact Catrina Schambra at (775)887-7450 or 
email: catrina@cwsd.org at least 3 business days in advance so that arrangements can be made. 

1. Call to Order the CWSD Finance Committee 

2. Roll Call 

3. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter brought 
up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a later meeting. 

4. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Finance Committee Minutes of Feb. 28, 2024 

5. For Possible Action:  Approval of Final General Fund, Acquisition/Construction Fund, and 
Floodplain Management Fund FY 2024-25 Budgets 

6. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter brought 
up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a later meeting. 

7. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at  
775-887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org) and is available on the CWSD website at 

https://www.cwsd.org 

 

  

Carson Water Subconservancy District 
Finance Committee 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88154030091?pwd=VnhyaFBKTW8xemJIQlJOQUtEQVZFUT09
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org
https://www.cwsd.org/


2 
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

The undersigned affirms that on or before 9 am on May 8, 2024, a copy of the Notice of Public Meeting 
and Agenda for the May 14, 2024 meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District Finance 
Committee, per NRS 241.020 was posted at the following locations:  CWSD,  
777 E. William St., Ste. 209, Carson City, NV  89701; the CWSD website:  https://www.cwsd.org and the 
Nevada Public Notice Website:  https://notice.nv.gov/ 
 

  5/8/2024 8:30 am 

______________________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Catrina Schambra, Office Manager, CWSD  Date & Time of Posting 

 

https://www.cwsd.org/agendas-temporary/cwsd-board-meetings/
https://notice.nv.gov/
catri
Sticky Note



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 26, 2024, 8:30am – 12:30pm 

DRAFT Meeting Minutes 
Committee Members Present: 
David Griffith, Alpine County 
Dave Nelson, Douglas County 
Ernie Schank, Churchill County  
Lisa Schuette, Carson City 
Lee Sterrett, Storey County 
Mike Workman, Lyon County 
Staff Present: 
Brenda Hunt, WS Program Manager (via Zoom) 
Edwin James, General Manager 
Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board 

Others Present:   
Kathy Canfield, Storey County 
Julie Guerrero, Churchill County 
Rebecca Feldermann, River Wranglers 
Rob Holley, Dayton Valley Conservation District 
Lori Leonard, The Nature Conservancy 
Chris Mahannah, Churchill County 
Kimra McAfee, Alpine Watershed Group 
Ty Minor, Dayton Valley Conservation District 
Mike Northan, Storey County Public Works 
Christy Sullivan, Lahontan Conservation District 
Jason Wierzbicki, Storey County Public Works 
Rich Wilkinson, Carson Valley Conservation District 

The meeting was called to order at 8:35 am by Committee Member Nelson.  The meeting was held in 
the Conference Room of the Carson Water Subconservancy District, 777 E. William St., #209, Carson 
City, Nevada with a Zoom option available.  Roll call determined a quorum of the committee present. 

Item #3 - Public comment:  None 

Item #4 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 
May 2, 2023 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion to approve the minutes of the Finance 

Committee meeting on May 2, 2023.  The motion was seconded by Committee Member 

Schank and unanimously approved by the Finance Committee. 

Item #5 - For Discussion Only - Review the Tentative General Fund FY 2024-25 Budget and 
Hear Presentations for Proposed Projects; Review the Tentative Acquisition/Construction 
Fund FY 2024-25 Budget; and Review the Tentative Floodplain Management Fund  
FY 2024-25 Budget 

Mr. James noted the committee will need to cut $100,000 from the proposed budgets to reach 
the 4% required ending balance.  He went over the proposed budgets with the committee 
describing each category of income and expense. 

Presentations of Proposed Projects 
Carson River Projects: 

Carson Valley Conservation District – Carson River Restoration & Flood Damage Repairs 
Rich Wilkinson, Manager/Coordinator 

Carson Valley Conservation District (CVCD) will complete flood damage repairs and bioengineering 
establishment at five different project locations. Proposed actions include bioengineering treatments, 
sediment removal, bank shaping, rock riprap barbs, and bank protection. CVCD has prioritized flood 
damage repairs at five project sites on the Carson River. Two sites are located where previously 
completed projects sustained flood damage and require maintenance; these sites include Flying J Site #2 
and Charney Site #4. Three sites are newly identified locations where CVCD has not previously 



CWSD Finance Committee 
February 26,2024 DRAFT Minutes 

2 
 

performed bank stabilization activities. The first of these is Carnes Site #1, where a significant head cut 
has formed on the west side of the riverbank. Sustained flooding conditions in 2023 caused severe 
erosion resulting in the loss of 18 feet of riverbank. The second newly identified project location is 
Carnes Site #2, downstream of the first location. The third newly identified project location is Running 
River Ranch Site #2. These sites have similarly experienced vertical head cuts and severe erosion. CVCD 
will hire a construction contractor to source fill materials, perform riverbank reconstruction, haul and 
place rock riprap, and install stream barbs. CVCD staff will harvest and install willow poles, willow mats, 
willow bundles, and willow fascines, install COIR fabric, and plant native seed. These methods will 
minimize soil erosion, trap sedimentation and thus improve water quality, improve wildlife habitat, and 
alleviate the devastating impacts of flooding for local landowners.  Funding request: $225,000 (2 Years) 

Dayton Valley Conservation District – DVCD Management / Administration (1) 
Rob Holley, District Manager 

Since 1996, DVCD has quietly performed projects that have protected vital riparian areas, agricultural 
lands, public open spaces, water quality, and habitat restoration. In order for these efforts to continue 
for years to come, DVCD is in critical need of a consistent source of dedicated funding. In order to 
accomplish this, DVCD needs a funding source to cover ordinary and customary daily management, 
administrative, and operational functions. These are a large portion of the personnel and operational 
expenses, and necessary for both the function and survival of DVCD. Having a 2-year source of said 
funds will allow DVCD to:  

• Successfully complete ongoing/planned projects which enhance and support riparian function, water 
quality, flood plain restoration/protection, public education/engagement, and noxious weed control 

• Avoid continued spending of project-related funding on management/administrative costs 

• Successfully conduct the necessary efforts to establish public support for and designated funding for 
the ongoing and successful implementation of broad-reaching conservation efforts within the 
watershed of the Middle Carson River 

• Establish a program at DVCD that is widely identified and supported within the community.   

Funding request: $50,000/yr. (2 Years) 
 
Dayton Valley Conservation District – DVCD Weed & Restoration Crew (2) 
Rob Holley, District Manager 

With assistance from the Nevada Dept. of Agriculture/USFS, Dayton Valley Conservation District is 
preparing to embark on a multiple year noxious weed management and treatment project that will 
encompass not only the riparian corridor and adjacent floodplains, but also several primary drainages 
that feed the middle Carson River in Lyon County. These areas include the Moundhouse Industrial 
Complex, Daney Canyon, Six Mile Canyon in Lyon County, Gold Canyon in Lyon County, lower Eldorado 
Canyon, and the riparian corridor and adjacent floodplains of the Carson River between from Dayton 
Valley to and including the Fort Churchill area. In the late Spring of 2024, DVCD will be hiring a 
Conservation Technician, and at least one 9-month seasonal employee in order to address noxious weed 
control, revegetation, and habitat restoration within the aforementioned areas. Additionally Noxious 
Weed funding from CWSD will be applied to this project, with emphasis given not only to appropriate 
weed treatments, but coordinated restoration of treated and surrounding areas. The CWSD funds will 
offset some personnel costs related to the Conservation Tech, and will also address equipment 
maintenance/repair, supply and seed acquisition, and public information/education materials designed 
to inform area residents through USPS mail programs, social media posts, and public forums. 
Specifically, the requested $30,000 (to be requested next fiscal year, as well) will be applied primarily 
toward the hiring of at least one member of staff to assist the Conservation Tech during the spring, 
summer and fall months. Efficient and effective weed treatments require precise and rapid applications 



CWSD Finance Committee 
February 26,2024 DRAFT Minutes 

3 
 

that are better accomplished with multiple personnel. Some funds, as required, may be applied to 
acquisition/maintenance/repair of related equipment and supplies. Funding request: $30,000 

 
Lahontan Conservation District –Clearing & Snagging Carson River 
Christy Sullivan, District Clerk 

The project is an ongoing effort to create a river channel that is clear of obstructions/abstraction and 
provides a free flow at natural choke points. For example, Highway 50, Highway 95, and Bafford Bridges 
have historically been clogged by debris during high water flooding events. Obstructions in these 
locations causes back up and overflow that moves into residential housing areas in both the county and 
City of Fallon. Locations where sediment-caused islands changed the flow, eroded banks, or blocked 
flows under the bridge. Removal of sediment will provide debris/obstructions to flow downstream more 
freely.  This project will prevent and minimize property loss and other damage during flood conditions. 
Riverbank stabilization after sediment removal will minimize erosion, improve water quality and 
reestablish native vegetation. Maintaining a clear channel will enable the citizens to utilize the river for 
recreation. Maintaining an adequate velocity of the river flow prevents stagnant pools from developing 
where mosquitoes can propagate and create health issues for residents along the course of the Carson 
River.   Funding request: $32,700 
 
Churchill County - Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program 
Chris Mahannah, PE 

This ongoing project has regional benefits since most of the surface supply for the Newlands project and 
hence recharge come from the Carson River which are augmented by the Truckee River. The Churchill 
County Water Resource Plan Update has identified the local intermediate aquifer as the near term 
quasi-municipal supply and the length of time it can sustain development is contingent upon recharge 
from the surface water system and downward gradients from the Shallow aquifer to the Intermediate 
aquifer in the western portion of the basin. Due to the relative slow movement of groundwater, impacts 
to the Intermediate aquifer due to reductions in recharge from the Shallow aquifer were thought to take 
years or decades to fully manifest, however recovery of water levels in 2016 - 2017 seem to contradict 
this. Ongoing monitoring is critical to further understand the rate of decline in water levels during 
drought years and subsequent recovery during wetter years. Furthermore, the State Engineer relies on 
water level data when making many water resource and water rights decisions. At such a time that the 
intermediate aquifer can no longer support the demand, other resources will need to be developed 
which are identified in Chapter 12 of the Updated Water Resource Plan. Some of these alternatives such 
as the Wildgoose Farm or Dixie Valley importation may be regional in nature and others involve 
conjunctive use and artificial recharge of surface waters. This program will provide an early warning as 
to when some of these other regional type alternatives will need to be pursued. 
Funding request: $48,000 (3 Years - FY25 $16,000; FY26 $16,000; FY27 $16,000) 
 
River Wranglers- Conserve the Carson River Workdays 
Rebecca Feldermann, Executive Director 

River Wranglers continues to host Conserve the Carson River Workdays (CCRWD) throughout the Carson 
River watershed. Over the past two years we have diversified our program to include various field days 
aligned with Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) with different grades, field days with the 
Washoe Tribe, and field days with Home School groups to increase our reach throughout the watershed. 
Our workday model primarily remains the same but due to newer guidelines, restrictions, financial 
concerns in the different districts, and rapid teacher turnover, we have been required to occasionally 
adjust in order to continue this vital program. For CCRWDs, as allowed, we continue to go into high 
school Future Farmers of America (FFA) and science classrooms to teach high school students the 
necessary information and skills so that they in turn can tutor elementary students at the river in a 



CWSD Finance Committee 
February 26,2024 DRAFT Minutes 

4 
 

combined workday. The high school students are trained in activities that teach children about our 
watershed, the importance of clean water, the water cycle, and non-point source pollution. At the river, 
they become “mentors” to the younger students, spending the day with them, leading them through the 
activities. For the past two years, this has been our model for students in Churchill County, as the 
teachers are incredibly supportive and receptive. If high school students are unable to participate, we 
still provide an enriching workday with the assistance of professional volunteers from our partners 
including CWSD, NDEP, CCP&ROS, NDOW, UNR, TNC, RCI, as well as trained community volunteers. In 
addition to the educational stations, we partner with conservation districts to include river work 
projects that the students complete together. After workdays, elementary students are visited by River 
Wranglers staff to do a “wrap-up,” which reinforces the messages they learned at the river. We once 
again discuss non-point source pollution, the geography and features of the watershed with the 
utilization of the Carson River watershed map, and the importance of the river and watershed to their 
own lives, while also reinforcing the concept of stewardship. We do a pre- and post-test with all involved 
students to track their increase in knowledge about the watershed and non-point source pollution to 
gauge the effectiveness of our programs.  Funding request: $30,000 
 
Alpine County Watershed Group- Upper Carson River Watershed Programs 
Kimra McAfee, Executive Director 

Alpine Watershed Group (AWG) seeks funding for the fiscal year 2024-25 from the Carson Water 
Subconservancy District for the coordination of its Upper Carson River watershed programs. AWG’s 
mission is to protect, conserve, and restore the watersheds of Alpine County by promoting sustainable 
community and science-based collaborative solutions. For 23 years, AWG has organized volunteers and 
inspired widespread participation to address water quality monitoring and restoration needs in Alpine 
County. To further the stewardship of our county’s natural resources, our organization has developed 
diverse partnerships around watershed issues. As the nonprofit environmental organization for the 
Carson River headwaters our positive impacts extend downstream, where the Carson River flows into 
Northern Nevada.  Through this project, AWG staff will: 1) involve local citizens in watershed 
stewardship; 2) plan and implement priority watershed monitoring and restoration activities; 3) recruit 
diverse stakeholders and strengthen community partnerships; and 4) support local watershed education 
and community outreach.  Funding request: $30,000 

New Projects: 

Storey County 6 Mile Canyon Culverts Project 
Jason Wierzbicki, Public Works Director 

Storey County is requesting financial assistance with the replacement of existing culverts along Six Mile 
Canyon Road. Six Mile Canyon is the main drainage from Virginia City downstream to the Dayton Valley 
area and eventually the Carson River. The canyon is steep and nan-ow and contains a roadway (Six Mile 
Canyon Road) that is critical infrastructure to connect the Mark Twain neighborhood of Storey County to 
Virginia City. Dayton Valley residents also utilize this roadway for a faster route to the Reno area. When 
storm events occur, the flooding of the canyon causes erosion and overtopping of the existing culverts, 
leaving heavy debris on the roadway and causing undercutting of banks and the roadway itself. This 
then causes the roadway to be closed for repairs, which then impacts emergency response and school 
transportation issues along with eliminating the route to Reno from the Dayton Valley area. Our 
proposed project is to install headwalls on the newly replaced "minepond" culvert, along with replacing 
two other high priority culve1t sites, with headwalls for both. The "minepond" culvert because of its 
failure was the highest priority. Two other culverts identified as Culvert ID-7 and Culvert ID-9 are the 
next highest priority. Storey County is requesting financial assistance with the completion of the 
headwalls for the "minepond" culvert and the replacement of Culvert ID-7and Culvert ID-9 with 
headwalls for both new culverts. Storey County plans to install the improvements in late summer/early 
fall of 2024.  Funding request: $36,500 



CWSD Finance Committee 
February 26,2024 DRAFT Minutes 

5 
 

The Nature Conservancy – Riparian Tree Planting, Enhanced Wetlands, Rotational Grazing 
Lori Leonard, , General Manager  

The Nature Conservancy’s 805-acre River Fork Ranch Preserve includes a 2-mile stretch of the West Fork 
of the Carson River, both branches of the Brockliss Slough, and several irrigation ditches that run 
through the Preserve.  The Preserve is managed as a wildlife preserve and working cattle operation. 
According to the Carson River Adaptive Stewardship Plan (CRASP), "channelization and levee 
construction in the Carson Valley "…has resulted in channel instability and an increase in sediment 
loading to the river".  It also notes that agriculture inputs can add sediment, nitrogen, total phosphorus, 
pesticides, and bacteria in this stretch of the Carson Valley (CWSD, 2017). We are looking for effective 
cost-effective methods to improve water quality with riparian tree planting, enhanced wetlands to filter 
irrigation water before it returns to the West Fork of the Carson River, and rotational grazing. This 
project would be expanding on TNC’s Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Environmental 
Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) cost-share grant, which is funding exclusion fencing along rivers and 
irrigation ditches, and watering facilities.  Both are “Recommended Management Measures” for this 
Critical Area, mentioned in the CRASP (2017). The fence was installed Fall 2023, and the stock watering 
facilities will be complete by the Spring of 2024.  EQIP funding will also support streambank stabilization 
around return flow pipes along the W. Fork of the Carson River, which will be completed within the next 
1-2 years.  TNC is also seeking funding through the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection 
(NDEP) 319(h) grant to support this project.  
Practice 1:  Cottonwood Planting in Five-foot Trenches Cottonwood trees will be harvested in January or 
February from The Nature Conservancy’s McCarran Ranch Preserve, where cottonwood trees have 
successfully grown from seed to heights of six-ten feet.  The roots are wrapped in burlap and soaked to 
keep the roots damp.  Trees are then transplanted into trenches dug ~3-5 feet with a backhoe in riparian 
areas.  This places the roots at or near the water table, giving them the greatest potential for success 
during the dry summer months. 
Practice 2:  Enhanced Wetlands to filter irrigation water returning to Carson River Wetland 
enhancement is the rehabilitation of a degraded wetland, and/or the modification of an existing 
wetland to favor specific wetland functions.  For this project, we would like to create a depression 
(enhanced wetland) to filter pasture irrigation water before it returns to the West Fork of the Carson 
River.  Wetland enhancements would include (1)Hydrologic enhancement (depth duration and season of 
inundation, and/or duration and season of soil saturation); and (2)Vegetative enhancement (seeding or 
planting of desired species to filter sediment and non-point source pollution). 
Practice 3:  Rotational Grazing TNC would like to experiment with rotational grazing in some pastures.  
According to the USDA U.S. Department of Agriculture, rotational grazing has many potential 
environmental and economic advantages.   Funding request:  $64,178 

CWSD Projects: 

CWSD – Watershed Campaign Outreach – TV & Radio (1) 
Brenda Hunt, Watershed Program Manager 

Using our existing assets, CWSD will collaborate with a contractor to continue our traditional media 
press releases, PSAs, audio ads for TV & Radio, and possibly newspapers. The project is consistent with 
the goals of the CRASP, specifically the Watershed-Literacy Action Plan and meets Section B Criteria 1 & 
6 and enhances the likelihood of Criteria 2-5. One Truckee River has requested $15,000 from the 
Western Regional Water Commission to promote Make Your Yard A Sponge.  This request would 
continue to fund other the 5/30-sec PSAs on TV & Radio.  Funding request:  $20,000 
 
CWSD – Watershed Clerk Position (2) 
Brenda Hunt, Watershed Program Manager 

Due to the loss of NDEP/USEPA grant funding & the Watershed Specialist's retirement, we find ourselves 



CWSD Finance Committee 
February 26,2024 DRAFT Minutes 

6 
 

with limited funding to meet our obligations to support integrated watershed planning and CRC 
coordination.  This funding request would support hiring a Watershed Clerk to assist CRASP 
implementation through social and traditional media efforts, outreach events, website updates, grant 
procurement, CRC Coordination, field work, and project implementation. This position meets Sect. B 
criteria 1, 5 and 6 & will lead to enhancements for criteria 2-4 WQ improvements, protection of our 
stream banks, and reduction of flooding via outreach efforts. No other funds have been identified at this 
time. CWSD proposes to hire the Watershed Clerk in lieu of obtaining AmeriCorps and replacing 
Watershed Program Specialist due to loss of grant from NDEP/USEPA.   
Funding request:  $56,500 (October 2024-June 2025; Future Years $75,000/yr.) 
 
Item #6 - For Possible Action – Make Recommendations for the Tentative General Fund, 
Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund FY 2024-25 Budgets 

During a working lunch, Mr. James reviewed the General, Acquisition/Construction and Floodplain 
Management Funds with the committee.  Assuming that CWSD will transfer $100,000 to the Flood 
Account and $75,000 to the Acquisition/Construction Account the committee still needs to cut $100,000 
from the General Fund to have a balanced budget. Based on further discussion, the committee 
proposed the following adjustments to reach that goal: 

• Fund TNC Riparian Tree Planting, Enhanced Wetlands, Rotational Grazing at $30,000/yr. x2 years 

• Fund CWSD Watershed Campaign Outreach $20,000 from Outside Professional Services Account 

• Alpine County $75,000 funding request dropped (Not presented to Finance Committee) 

• Fund CVCD Carson River Restoration & Flood Damage Repairs at $112,500/yr. x2 years 

• DVCD Management/Administration funding approval contingent on CWSD meeting with DVCD 
Board and conditions/milestones being met due to past contract projects not being completed 

Committee Member Schank made a motion that the Finance Committee 

recommend that the Tentative Budgets for the Fiscal Year2024-25 General Fund 

be approved as adjusted above.  Committee Member Griffith seconded the motion 

which was unanimously approved by the Finance Committee. 

Discussion of certain line item expense account names be changed to make it easier to identify their 
purpose resulted in consensus to rename the following:  General Fund Expense Account #8008-00 will 
be changed from “Preliminary Planning” to “Contingency Funds”; Floodplain Management Fund Account 
#7203-03 will be changed from “Floodplain Planning” to “Floodplain Contingency Funds”; and 
Acquisition/Constructions Fund Expense Account #8015-04 will be changed from “Construction 
Projects” to “Acquisition/Construction Contingency Funds.” 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion that the Finance Committee 

recommend that the Tentative Budgets for the Fiscal Year2024-25 Floodplain 

Management and Acquisition/Construction Funds be approved as presented.  

Committee Member Griffith seconded the motion which was unanimously 

approved by the Finance Committee. 

 

Committee Member Schank made a motion that the Finance Committee recommend any 

Ad Valorem Taxes received over and above the amount budgeted be put into the 

Acquisition/Construction Fund moving forward.  Committee Member Schuette  seconded 

the motion which was unanimously approved by the Finance Committee. 

Item #7 - Public comment:  None 

The meeting adjourned at 12:40pm.   

Respectfully submitted, 

Catrina Schambra 
Secretary to the Board 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Finance Committee 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: May 14, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #5 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD FY2024-25  

Final Budgets 

DISCUSSION:  On March 20, 2024, the CWSD Board approved the Tentative Budgets 
with the understanding that the actual Ad Valorem figures from the Department of Taxation 
would be put in the final budget when received The Board agreed that any additional funds 
from the actual Ad Valorem Tax amount compared to the estimated amount would be 
applied to the Acquisition/Construction Fund. Therefore, the transfer to the 
Acquisition/Construction Fund is increased by $75,000 for a total of $150,000. 
 
Since the approval of the Tentative Budgets CWSD has received two new grants and 
received additional funds for one grant.  These additional funds are included in the Final 
budget.  With the additional grants funding some of CWSD’s staff time will be reimbursed 
providing additional funds to the General Account.  Below are proposed changes from the 
Tentative to the Final budgets:   
 

• Increase the Outside Professional account by $25,000 

• Reduce the Insurance Cost by $1,204 

• Increase River Wranglers grant amount by $10,000 (see attached letter) 

• DVCD unused funds in FY 23-24 be carried over to FY 24-25 (see attached letter) 

 

Attached are the proposed FY 24-25 Final Budgets.  Everything highlighted in yellow is 
proposed changes from the Tentative to the Final Budgets.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the CWSD FY 2024-25 General Fund, Floodplain 
Management Fund, and Acquisition/Construction Fund Final Budgets as presented. 
 

Page 9 of 16 



From: Ed James
To: Catrina Schambra
Subject: FW: Additional funding
Date: Monday, May 6, 2024 4:42:42 PM

For the finance committee.
 
Edwin James
General Manager
777 E. William St., Suite 209
Carson City, NV  89703
775-887-7456
 
From: Rebecca Feldermann <rebecca@riverwranglers.org> 
Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 4:41 PM
To: Ed James <edjames@cwsd.org>
Subject: Additional funding
 
Ed,
 
River Wranglers would like to reach out to CWSD to request additional funding in the
amount of $10,000. Based on the funding reduction from the 319 grant program, and
the lack of funding that will be available from FEMA for outreach, River Wranglers
would have to cut much of our outreach, specifically relating to flood
awareness/safety. With this additional funding, River Wranglers would be allowed to
continue the important work of educational outreach within the Carson River
watershed, with special attention being focused on flood awareness.
 
Thank you for your consideration,
 
Rebecca Feldermann
 
--
Rebecca Feldermann, Executive Director, River Wranglers
(775) 386.2743 l www.riverwranglers.org

Inspiring youth through hands-on learning to explore, conserve, and understand the
importance of local rivers.

Page 10 of 16 

mailto:edjames@cwsd.org
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org
http://www.riverwranglers.org/


Page 11 of 16 



Page 12 of 16 



Proposed Approved

Final Final Projected  
Budget Budget Actual  

Income Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

5007-00 · Storey County General Tax 21,207.96$         17,665.04$        19,637.00$         Tenative Budget Percent Increase

5008-00 . Alpine County 14,334.80$         13,088.75$        13,088.75$         20,422.48$                        8%

5009-00 · Churchill County Ad Valorem 279,422.38$       257,925.40$      257,925.40$        13,612.30$                        9.41%

5010-00 · Lyon County Ad Valorem 269,629.95$       239,718.66$      239,718.66$        268,242.42$                      8.33%

5011-00 · Douglas County Ad Valorem 820,614.45$       747,737.96$      747,737.96$        249,307.41$                      12.48%

5012-00 · Carson City Ad Valorem 578,517.07$       535,257.11$      535,257.11$        777,647.48$                      9.75%

5022-00 · Mud Lake Water Lease 60,000.00$         58,000.00$        58,000.00$         556,667.39$                      8.08%

5023-00 · Lost Lake Water Lease 880.00$              880.00$             780.00$              

5031-00 · Interest Income - St Pool Reg 27,866.74$         16,587.80$        42,400.00$         $1,948,183.85

5050-13 · Watershed Coord Grant VI 2023 36,545.00$         126,600.00$      110,455.00$        3.50%

5050-14 · Watershed Coord Grant VII 2024 Grants

Reimbursement from Churchill Co 22,000.00$         

5050-07 ·CRC Donation

Aquatic Trail Grant 1,504.00$           25,030.00$        40,677.00$         

NDEM - 30-Year Regional Water Plan 76,800.00$         119,400.00$      184,671.00$        Grants

North Dayton BCA Study 105,000.00$       Grant increase

5058-04 ·208 Water Quality AG 20,171.00$        20,546.00$         New Grant

5060-00 · Misc. Income / Watershed Tour 6,500.00$           6,000.00$          6,985.00$           Grants

5082-00 · CASGEM 500.00$              1,250.00$          700.00$              

FEMA MAS 12 124,000.00$      119,615.00$        

FEMA COMS 1 45,657.00$         491,400.00$      487,890.00$        Grants

FEMA COMS 2 260,000.00$       Grants

Total Income 2,626,979.35$    2,800,711.72$    2,886,083.88$     New Grant

Expenses

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

7015-00 · Salaries & Wages 548,400.00$       529,400.00$      505,000.00$        4.3 COLA%

7020-00 · Employee Benefits 242,030.00$       212,800.00$      210,000.00$        $2000 increase Health Ins Does not include new employee

7021-00 · Workers Comp Ins. 1,400.00$           1,000.00$          1,200.00$           One new Board Member Does not include new employee

7101-00 · Director's Fees 19,000.00$         18,000.00$        15,500.00$         One new Board Member

7102-00 · Insurance 5,396.00$           5,400.00$          6,001.00$           Reduced by $1,204

7103-00 · Office Supplies 4,600.00$           4,800.00$          3,500.00$           

7104-00 · Postage 1,700.00$           1,600.00$          1,600.00$           

7105-00 · Rent 42,253.20$         40,972.80$        40,972.80$         

7106-00 · Telephone 5,600.00$           5,300.00$          5,450.00$           

7107-00 · Travel-transport/meals/lodging 21,000.00$         19,000.00$        19,000.00$         

7108-00 · Dues & Publications 1,700.00$           1,600.00$          1,600.00$           

7109-00 · Miscellaneous Expense 500.00$              1,000.00$          500.00$              

7110-00 · Conferences & Education 4,000.00$           3,500.00$          3,500.00$           

7111-00 · Office Equipment 7,000.00$           6,600.00$          6,600.00$           Includes copier

7112-00 · Bank Charges 60.00$                50.00$               50.00$                

7115-00 · Accounting 22,000.00$         16,800.00$        16,800.00$         

7116-00 · Legal 30,000.00$         30,000.00$        30,000.00$         

Total Administrative Expenses 956,639.20$       897,822.80$      867,273.80$         

Multi Year, Studies, and Grants  

PROJECTS Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

7114-00 · Professional Outside Services 50,000.00$         50,000.00$        35,000.00$         Increased by $25,000

7117-00. Lost Lakes Expenses 16,000.00$         15,000.00$        15,000.00$          

7118-00 · Mud Lake O & M 1,550.00$           1,500.00$          1,500.00$           

7120-07 · Watershed Tour 6,000.00$           1,000.00$          6,000.00$           

7120-55 Watershed Coord Grant VI 2023 26,300.00$         55,900.00$        30,010.00$         Grant

7120-56 Watershed Coord Match VI 2023 2,062.00$           18,550.00$        10,739.00$         Grant

NDEM North Dayton BAC 100,000.00$       New Grant

7126-01 · NDEM 30-Year Drought Plan 25,100.00$         90,000.00$        146,367.00$        Grant Increase

7404-00 · Noxious Weeds Control 90,000.00$         90,000.00$        90,000.00$         

7406-00 · 208 Planning - AG Runoff 3,340.00$          5,050.00$           Grant

7433-10 · State Park Aquatic Trail 701.00$              19,770.00$        32,027.00$         Grant

7433-10 · State Park Aquatic Trail Match 13,173.00$         Grant

7441-00 · FEMA MAS #12 93,408.00$        80,600.00$         Grant

7442-00 · FEMA COMS #1 29,644.00$         462,700.00$      436,621.00$        Grant

FEMA COMS #13 229,207.00$       New Grant

7500-00 · USGS Stream Gage Contracts 81,209.00$         89,603.00$        76,902.00$         

7508-03 · USGS Do. Co. & Chur Co GW Collection 45,950.00$         44,200.00$        44,200.00$         

7526-01 · USGS Middle Carson Groundwater 15,740.00$         

7529-01 · USGS Water Resources 2022-2024 22,300.00$         12,582.50$         

7610-10 · Douglas Co Regional Pipeline 125,000.00$       125,000.00$      125,000.00$        

7620-11 . Regional Pipeline Payment to CC 125,000.00$       125,000.00$      125,000.00$        

Total Multi Year & On-going Projects 976,023.00$       1,284,971.00$    1,301,511.50$      

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 Final General Fund Budget FY 2024-25

Page 13 of 16 



Proposed Approved

Final Final Projected  
Budget Budget Actual  

Counties and River Projects Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

7215-00 . Sierra NV Journeys - Family Night 3,279$               3,279$                

7332-00 · Carson River Work Days 30,000$             30,000$              

7337-30 · CVCD  2023-24 215,000$           215,000$            

7337-39 · DVCD Bank Stab & Dayton Bridge 1 91,800.00$         -$                   7,900$                Carryover fr FY 24-25

7337-40 · DVCD Bank Stab & Dayton Bridge 2 68,100.00$         100,000$           32,000$              Carryover fr FY 24-25

7337-46 · LCD Clearing & Sand Bar Removal 29,500$             29,500$              

7600-05 · Alpine Co. Watershed Group. 30,000$             30,000$              

7600-09 · CASGEM 5.00$                 5.00$                 5.00$                  

7640-20 . Lahontan Valley WTR Level 2021-2024 15,000$             15,000$              

7640-18 . Dixie Valley WTR Level Meas 25,000$              23,000$             23,000$               

TNC Riparian Reveg & bank Stabilization 3,774$                 

Total Carson River Projects 184,905$            445,784$           389,458$             

LGIP Transfer Expenses Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

7630-12 - HWY 50 ROW (Cap) 40,000.00$         90,000.00$        50,000.00$         From Acqu/Const 

7620-18 - Clear Creek LOMR 6,784.00$           From Flood Acc't

7610-19 - Pinenut Ck LOMR 5,945.00$           From Flood Acc't

TCID Diversion Dam 50,000.00$         From Flood Acc't

Churchill County Floodplain Maps 10,000.00$         44,342.00$         From Flood Acc't

Web Hosting (MB) 7,200.00$          7,200.00$           From Flood Acc't

Emergency Streambank Repairs Levee 93,000.00$         
AWG Geomorpholoical Study 43,350.00$         40,000.00$         From Flood Acc't

Total LGIP Transfer-In Expenses 93,350.00$         97,200.00$        297,271.00$        

New Projects Jul '24 - Jun '25

7640-20 . Lahontan Valley WTR Level 2024-26 16,000.00$         3-Year Project 48,000.00$                        

Alpine Watershed Group 30,000.00$         

River Wranglers CCRWD 40,000.00$         $10,000 increase

CRC Web site host (half of $4370) + update ($400) 2,585.00$           4,770.00$                          

Storey County Culverts 36,500.00$         

CRC Outreach Request 20,000.00$         Reduced Outside Prof account by $20,000

Watershed Clerk position 56,900.00$         Full Year 75,280.00$                        

TNC River Fork Ranch 2-Year 30,000.00$         2-Year Project 64,178.00$                        

Carson Valley Conservation District Project 112,500.00$       2-Year Project 225,000.00$                      

Lahontan Conservation District Project 32,700.00$         

DVCD  Admin 50,000.00$         2-Year Project 100,000.00$                      

DVCD Additional Weed funding 30,000.00$         2-Year Project 60,000.00$                        

Total Expenses for New Projects 457,185.00$       

Preliminary Planning Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

8008-00 · Preliminary Planning 400,000.00$       400,000.00$      

Net Expenditures 3,068,102.20$    3,125,777.80$    2,855,514.30$      

Subtotal (441,122.85)$      (325,066.08)$     30,569.58$          

Other Income/Expense Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

Beginning Equity 796,192.58$       552,926.50$      633,352.00$        Based on 22-23 audit

Transfer from Floodplain Mgt to General Fund 53,350.00$         7,200.00$          247,271.00$        

Transfer from Acqui/Const to General Fund 40,000.00$         90,000.00$        50,000.00$         

Total Other Income 889,542.58$       650,126.50$      930,623.00$        

Transfer from General Fund to Floodplain Mgt 122,000.00$       90,000.00$        90,000.00$         

Transfer from General Fund to Acqui/Const 150,000.00$       75,000.00$        75,000.00$         Increased by $75,000

Total Other Expenses 272,000.00$       165,000.00$      165,000.00$        

Net Other Income 617,542.58$       485,126.50$      765,623.00$        

 

ENDING BALANCE 176,419.73$       160,060.42$      796,192.58$         

4 Percent 138,724.09$        

Notes

Page 14 of 16 



Proposed Approved

Final Final Projected  

Budget Budget Actual  

Ordinary Income Jul '24 - Jun '25 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Jul '23 - Jun '24 Notes

5032-01 · Interest Inc - Inv. Pool 43,952.13$        35,446.00$          56,000.00$          Based on 3.5 %

Total Ordinary Income 43,952.13$        35,446.00$          56,000.00$          

Other Income

Beginning Equity 1,255,775.00$   1,181,544.00$     1,174,775.00$     Based on the 22-23 Audit

Transfer In- General Fund 150,000.00$      75,000.00$          75,000.00$           

Total Other Income 1,405,775.00$   1,256,544.00$     1,249,775.00$     

Net Income 1,449,727.13$   1,291,990.00$     1,305,775.00$     

Expenses

Right-A-Way Lyon County Utility to Silver Springs 40,000.00$        90,000.00$          50,000.00$          

Construction Projects 1,275,000.00$   1,100,000.00$     

Total Expenses 1,315,000.00$   1,190,000.00$     50,000.00$          

Net Expenses 1,315,000.00$   1,190,000.00$     50,000.00$          

Ending Balance 134,727.13$      101,990.00$        1,255,775.00$      

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 Final Acquisition/Construction Fund Budget FY 2024-25

 

Page 15 of 16 



Proposed Adopted

Final Final Projected

Budget Budget Actual

Ordinary Income Jul '24- Jun '25 Jul '23- Jun '24 Jul '23- Jun '24 Notes

5032-01 · Interest Inc - Inv. Pool 6,302.63$         6,526.50$          20,900.00$        3.50%

Total Ordinary Income 6,302.63$         6,526.50$          20,900.00$        

Other Income
8000-01 · Beginning Balance 180,075.00$     217,550.00$      376,463.00$      Based on 22-23 Audit

Reimbursement from Churchill Co Maps 22,000.00$       

8001-01 · Transfer In-General Fund 100,000.00$     90,000.00$        90,000.00$         

Total Other Income 302,075.00$     307,550.00$      466,463.00$      

Net Income 308,377.63$     314,076.50$      487,363.00$      

Expense

TCID Diversion Flood Project 50,000.00$        50,000.00$        

Pinenut LOMR 11,801.00$        

Clear Creek LOMR 5,945.00$          

Churchill Co Floodplain Maps 10,000.00$       34,342.00$        

Alpine County Geomorphological Study WF 43,350.00$       83,350.00$        40,000.00$        

Web Access Hosting data 7,200.00$         7,200.00$          7,200.00$          

Emergency Streambank Repairs Levee 93,000.00$        

7203-03 Floodplain Planning 220,000.00$     150,000.00$      65,000.00$        

Total Expenses 280,550.00$     290,550.00$      307,288.00$      

Net Expenses 280,550.00$     290,550.00$      307,288.00$      

Ending Balance 27,827.63$       23,526.50$        180,075.00$      

 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 Final Floodplain Management Fund Budget FY 2024-25

 

Page 16 of 16 


	5-14-24 CWSD Finance Committee Agenda
	5-14-24 #4 2-26-24 Finance Comm mtg minutes-DRAFT
	5-14-24 ^N5 Budget
	5-14-24 #5A River Wranglers Additional Funding Request
	5-14-24 #5B DVCD Extension Requests FY 24 to 25 (2)
	5-14-24 ^N5C Proposed Final FY 2024-25 General EJ
	5-14-24 ^N5D Proposed Final FY 2024-25Acqu-Cons  Budget
	5-14-24 ^N5E PProposed Final FY 2024-25Floodplain Budget-CAT



